Bylaws of Turning Point USA at Eastern Florida State College

ARTICLE I – MEETINGS

- 1. Regular meetings shall be held at least once per month during the academic year.
- 2. Special meetings may be called by the President, or by a majority of the officers, with at least 48 hours' notice given to members.
- 3. A quorum shall consist of 50% of voting members plus one. No official business may be conducted without a quorum.

ARTICLE II – MEMBERSHIP EXPECTATIONS

- 1. Members must attend at least one meeting per semester to maintain active voting status.
- 2. Members are expected to uphold the mission and values of Turning Point USA and Eastern Florida State College.
- 3. Membership shall be open without regard to race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, veteran status, handicap status, or disability.

ARTICLE III – DUES

- 1. No dues shall be required unless approved by a two-thirds vote of the voting members and authorized by Eastern Florida State College.
- 2. If dues are implemented, they must be modest and used only for organizational purposes consistent with the Constitution and TPUSA mission.

ARTICLE IV – OFFICERS

- 1. Officers must be currently enrolled EFSC students in good standing.
- 2. No officer may hold more than one elected office at a time.
- 3. Vacancies shall be filled by presidential appointment with approval by a majority of officers until the next scheduled election.
- 4. Officers must maintain active membership and attend at least 75% of meetings/events unless excused.

ARTICLE V – COMMITTEES

- 1. The President may establish committees as needed to carry out the work of the organization.
- 2. Committee chairs shall be appointed by the President with officer approval.
- 3. Committees will report progress to the general membership at regular meetings.

ARTICLE VI – FINANCIAL PROCEDURES

- 1. The Treasurer shall keep accurate records of all income and expenses.
- 2. All financial transactions must be approved by at least two officers.
- 3. All expenditures must comply with Eastern Florida State College policies and TPUSA guidelines.
- 4. An annual financial report shall be presented to the membership at the final meeting of each spring semester.

ARTICLE VII – AMENDMENTS TO BYLAWS

- 1. Bylaws may be amended at any regular meeting by a two-thirds vote of voting members present, provided the amendment has been submitted in writing at least one meeting prior.
- 2. Amendments must remain consistent with the Constitution and EFSC/TPUSA requirements.

ARTICLE VIII – REMOVAL OF MEMBERS

- 1. A member may be removed from the organization for failure to uphold the mission, values, or policies of Turning Point USA or Eastern Florida State College.
- 2. Grounds for removal may include, but are not limited to: repeated unexcused absences, disruptive behavior, violation of EFSC's Student Code of Conduct, or actions contrary to the organization's mission.
- 3. Removal of a member requires a two-thirds vote of the officers of the board.